

Safeguarding & Protection of Young People Policy

Named Designated Safeguarding Officer

Kay Carter <u>kay@thedyslexia.co.uk</u> 0115 9246880 / 07811321955

Named Safeguarding Trustee

Nikki Purcell <u>njpteach@gmail.com</u> / <u>nikki@thedyslexia.co.uk</u> 0115 9246880

Policy owner	CEO (Chief Executive Officer)	
	DSO (Designated Safeguarding Officer)	
Policy written	12.02.19	
Policy last updated/reviewed	28.07.25	
Next review	27.07.26	

Contents

Definitions	2
The Principles of this Policy	3
Commitment to Procedures	
Legal Basis of the Role of The Dyslexia Association	4
The Role of the Designated Safeguarding Officer	4

Safer Recruitment	5
Records of Issues and Incidents	5
Sharing of Information	5
Relationships with Parents	5
Maintaining High Standards	6
Safeguarding of Young People with SEND	6
Support for Staff, Associates and Volunteers Involved in Safeguarding Issues	6
Training for Staff, Associates and Volunteers	7
Supervision of Young People	7
Visitor Policy	7
Dealing with Disclosure	7
Guidance Information for Allegations Made Against a Member of Staff, Associate or Volunteer	8
Guidance Information for Staff, Associates and Volunteers	10
Categories of Young Person Abuse - Definitions to Support Your Work	11
Types of risk and harm	11
Bullying	11
Child Sexual Exploitation	11
Who is at Risk?	12
Emotional Abuse	12
Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)	13
Neglect	13
Physical Abuse	14
Preventing Radicalisation	14
Sexual Abuse	15
Youth Produced Sexual Imagery	15
Managing Incidents of Self Harm	17
Online Tuition	19
Student Safeguarding Statement to Learners	19
Student Safeguarding Statement to Parents/Carers	20
Child Protection	20
Child Protection Procedures	20

Definitions

- Safeguarding is defined as any action taken to promote the welfare and safety of children and
 vulnerable adults who may be at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation. We all have a
 responsibility to safeguard the physical and mental health and wellbeing of the adults and
 children in our care.
- 2. A **child** or young person is anyone under 18.

- 3. A **vulnerable adult** is someone over the age of 18 who may need community care services by reason of mental or other disability, age, or illness and who is, or may be, unable to take care of him or herself or unable to protect him or herself against significant harm or exploitation.
- 4. Regulated activity is work that a barred person must not do. In relation to children, it comprises:
 - (i) unsupervised activities: teach, train, instruct, care for, or supervise children, or provide advice/guidance on well-being, or drive a vehicle only for children; ii.
 - (ii) work for a limited range of establishments ('specified places'), with opportunity for contact: e.g., schools, children's homes, childcare premises.

Work under (i) or (ii) is regulated activity only if done regularly: "regularly" is defined in detail in Regulated activity in relation to children

Regulated activity in relation to adults

5. An **associate** is an individual who delivers services for The Dyslexia Association on a self-employed basis.

The Principles of this Policy

The policy is applicable to all, but any adults who work in regulated activity for The Dyslexia Association are bound by this policy.

The principles are:

- The welfare of the young person or vulnerable adult is paramount.
- The Dyslexia Association will work together with other relevant agencies.
- The Dyslexia Association will be open with parents if this does not put the vulnerable adult or young person at risk.
- Confidentiality is important in all cases but not at the expense of the welfare of the vulnerable adult or young person.
- The Dyslexia Association accepts the duty of care to all vulnerable adults or young people with whom it works and will ensure that the activities it runs and the environment it works in are safe.
- The Dyslexia Association recognises the existence of unidentified abused children or vulnerable adults and that some of these may be present in activities organised by The Dyslexia Association.
- Each staff member, associate, volunteer, or staff contracted from outside agencies is responsible
 for ensuring that the policy is translated into action through his or her daily practice.
- The Dyslexia Association and its partners will ensure that all staff, associates, and volunteers
 interacting with young people are aware of their responsibilities for safeguarding the welfare of
 vulnerable adults or young people. This will be done through providing training and support in
 helping them understand the needs of individuals with whom we work, as well as ensuring they

- understand their individual and organisational responsibilities when working with young people.
- The Dyslexia Association will facilitate regular updating of training for all those engaged in
 delivering its services. All are responsible for ensuring their working knowledge is updated at this
 training. Safeguarding training starts at the induction programme for all engaged in the activities
 of The Dyslexia Association.

This policy has had due regard to the following legislation and statutory guidelines:

- Keeping Children Safe in Education 2025
- Human Rights Act 1998
- The Care Act 2014
- Staying Safe: Action Plan 2008
- The Equality Act 2010
- Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 and the Vetting and Barring Scheme 2009
- The GDPR and Data Protection Act 2018
- The Online Harms White Paper 2020
- Working Together to Safeguard Children Act 2023
- Safeguarding and protecting people for charities and trustees (The Charity Commission 2022)

Commitment to Procedures

The Dyslexia Association is committed to the principles outlined and will implement them through the guidelines in this policy. Everyone is responsible for ensuring that the policy is translated into action through his or her daily practice.

Legal Basis of the Role of The Dyslexia Association

The role of The Dyslexia Association is not to investigate these matters. As issues arise, The Dyslexia Association's role will be to record events. All concerns should be referred immediately to the designated safeguarding officer (DSO) from where the matter will be referred (where relevant) to the designated local authority and their safeguarding/child protection procedures.

The Role of the Designated Safeguarding Officer

It is the role of the designated safeguarding officer (DSO) to follow up all potential safeguarding issues and to make referrals to other agencies when appropriate. A designated safeguarding officer will always be available (during teaching hours) to discuss any safeguarding concerns. At least one member of the DSO team will be available to contact during any out-of-hours activities.

The DSOs will complete refresher level 3 training at least every two years. They will also take part in internal safeguarding meetings and local authority organised events to keep up to date with issues The Dyslexia Association: 0115 924 6880

and serious case reviews.

Safer Recruitment

The Dyslexia Association ensures safe recruitment by undertaking the following procedures:

- All those involved in recruitment are aware of and implement safer recruitment practices
- Qualification checks
- Enhanced DBS (Disclosure and Barring Service) checks for those working in regulated activity (with barred list if relevant)
- 2 x forms of photo ID information
- Reference checks
- ICO (Information Commissioners Office) registration (if self-employed)
- Professional insurance policies (if self-employed)

All those individuals involved in the management of The Dyslexia Association will be subject to an enhanced DBS check and added to the single central register.

An accompanying policy outlines our recruitment policy in detail, including all procedures and practice for recruitment.

Records of Issues and Incidents

The vulnerable adult or young person at the centre of any safeguarding issue has a need for confidentiality. Therefore, The Dyslexia Association has a need for security to ensure this confidentiality. However, this is not absolute confidentiality, and all records should be available for inspection by any investigating body.

All safeguarding incidents will be recorded using an agreed format and will be stored securely in a separate electronic safeguarding file.

Sharing of Information

No one will make decisions within The Dyslexia Association about safeguarding issues on his or her own. The only decision to make is whether to refer the matter to an investigating body. This decision will normally be made through discussion between the individual raising the concern and a designated safeguarding officer.

Relationships with Parents

The Dyslexia Association wishes to preserve its good relationships with the parents of the young people associated with it, both as service users and volunteers. However, the first principle on which

The Dyslexia Association's work is based is that the welfare of the young person is paramount. Consequently, The Dyslexia Association will consult and confer with parents of the young person involved in a safeguarding matter openly and honestly, except in circumstances where the young person's welfare may be harmed by doing so.

Maintaining High Standards

The Dyslexia Association places people in positions of responsibility for vulnerable adults and young people. Consequently, The Dyslexia Association seeks to do all that is reasonable to ensure the good character of all who deliver its services, including volunteers, and the safety of young people. Therefore, recruitment and induction procedures are necessarily robust and enhanced DBS checks are undertaken where necessary. The Dyslexia Association recognises however that these checks are not a guarantee that the checked person's behaviour will always continue to be appropriate. All individuals are responsible for maintaining high standards of behaviour when engaged in The Dyslexia Association's provision and are encouraged to raise their own concerns about others' inappropriate behaviour with any of the Designated Safeguarding Officers. We maintain a single central register with all necessary details which are updated, monitored, and reviewed.

Safeguarding of Young People with SEND (Special Educational Needs and Disabilities)

Young people who come into contact with The Dyslexia Association may have an education, health, and care plan (EHCP) or some form of special educational need and/or disability (SEND). It is recognised that additional barriers can exist with this group of learners when recognising abuse and neglect. These barriers can include:

- Assumptions that indicators of possible abuse such as behaviour, mood and injury relate to the child's disability without further exploration;
- The potential for children with SEND and disabilities being disproportionally impacted by behaviours such as bullying, without outwardly showing any signs;
- Communication barriers and difficulties in overcoming these barriers.

The Dyslexia Association recognises these as potential barriers and takes them into account when dealing with potential safeguarding issues. Our knowledge of the learner's individual needs and our relationships with learners are paramount to any issue we deal with and inform our practice.

Support for Staff, Associates and Volunteers Involved in Safeguarding Issues

The Dyslexia Association recognises that safeguarding issues are likely to be stressful for all involved and will seek to provide a reasonable and appropriate level of support. If anyone delivering services for The Dyslexia Association is cited as part of an incident, this person will be removed from the

situation immediately.

If individuals have concerns about anything that could be a safeguarding issue, they will talk to their line manager or anyone who is responsible for managing the provision for the young person. All concerns will be recorded using the <u>safeguarding concern form</u>.

Training for Staff, Associates and Volunteers

Designated Safeguarding Officers will complete refresher training at least every two years. Staff, associates, and volunteers will be provided with regular training. This may be e-learning like that provided by Nottinghamshire Safeguarding Children Partnership or our in-house annual training led by the DSO.

Supervision of Young People

The young people in The Dyslexia Association's care will be properly supervised.

Visitor Policy

The Dyslexia Association is in a shared building and visitors are greeted at the shared reception point. All visitors must sign the signing-in form in The Dyslexia Association reception area.

Dealing with Disclosure

This is a quick reference guide to working with young people under the Safeguarding Principles.

- An open and honest disclosure of abuse by a young person to a member of staff, associate or volunteer indicates the high level of esteem and trust the young person has for them. The member of staff, associate or volunteer should reciprocate that respect by supporting the young person appropriately.
- 2. Any allegation of any form of abuse by a young person must be taken seriously. This can also include any allegations made by a young person against another young person.
- 3. As soon as you have a safeguarding concern:
 - Do not question the young person just listen.
 - Do not promise confidentiality; explain your responsibilities.
 - Do not use leading questions.
 - Do not stop a young person who is freely recalling significant events.
 - Do not ask the young person to repeat his or her story to a colleague.
 - Do not ask the young person to write down his or her story.
 - Do not conduct your own investigation into any incident.

- Keep control; the young person will be dependent on you.
- Keep an open mind.
- Respond to the young person's emotional state appropriately.
- Beware of your own interpretation of what you hear.
- If the child is in immediate danger all staff, associates and volunteers MUST take emergency action, i.e., call the relevant emergency service.
- Contact the Designated Safeguarding Officer to discuss the disclosure and take further advice immediately.
- As soon as possible, record information including times and those in attendance, as well as what was said on an online safeguarding concern form.
- Record all subsequent events up to the time of police or children's social care intervention in your own handwriting. Sign and date each page and submit to the DSO.
- Support the young person's feelings and manage your own or seek support if you require it.
- Do not make statements to any media or any member of the public.
- All external enquiries (from the media or public) must be directed towards the DSO.

By following these guidelines, be assured that what you have done is right and you are following the best procedure for supporting the young person.

As an organisation we fully understand the trauma involved in dealing with disclosure. Discuss any personal needs initially with your line manager and/or the DSO and make any arrangements for further support you may require. Do not feel isolated in these matters.

Guidance Information for Allegations Made Against a Member of Staff, Associate or Volunteer

There are strict local authority procedures around the management of allegations made against a member of staff, associate or volunteer working for an organisation. So that allegations made against a member of staff, associate or volunteer are dealt with objectively and without prejudice, the local authority enforces that any allegation against a member of staff, associate or volunteer within an organisation must then be discussed with the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO). Following any formal referral, the LADO will take further decisions including protocols and procedures involving the police.

Allegations Management Process - further details on each stage of the process are available via Keeping Children Safe in Education 2022 Allegation made against a staff member, volunteer, or another adult (e.g. supply/agency staff) Allegation to be discussed with the CEO (if against the CEO then the chair of trustees/safeguarding trustee. Gather and triangulate facts/information and decide within 24 hours if the allegation meets the criteria for further advice from LADO. See box below for details Does the allegation suggest the individual may have CEO investigates the allegation, behaved in a way that has, or may have harmed a child possibly committed a crime against or related to a child recording all decisions, and according to TDA disciplinary - behaved in a way which indicates they may pose a risk to a child/children - behaved in a way that indicates they are unsuitable for work with children processes Yes Appropriate action for member of staff, records of allegations managed as described in Keeping Children Safe in Education 2022 Strategy discussion(s) to take place with LADO. Does the allegation meet threshold for referral? No Yes TDA Action LADO records their Multi-agency action Strategy meeting organised by Children's Social involvement as advice. LADO updated on the Care including police representatives. Information shared, actions and timescales agreed. Follow up disciplinary processes until final outcomes are agreed strategy meetings may be called until final outcomes are agreed: (see opposite box for outcome criteria) · Substantiated: there is sufficient evidence to prove the allegation • Malicious: there is sufficient evidence to disprove the allegation and there has been a deliberate act to deceive False: there is sufficient evidence to disprove the allegation Unsubstantiated: there is insufficient evidence to either prove or disprove the allegation. • Unfounded: to reflect cases where there is no

evidence or proper basis which supports the allegation being made.

Guidance Information for Staff, Associates and Volunteers

The information contained here is taken from

Keeping Children Safe in Education 2025 (The Department for Education)

Safeguarding and protecting people for charities and trustees (The Charity Commission 2021)

Regulated Activity and Supervision

1. Definition of Regulated Activity

In accordance with Keeping Children Safe in Education (KCSIE) 2025, regulated activity refers to roles involving close and frequent contact with children that are subject to enhanced DBS checks with barred list information. In TDA this includes:

Assessors, specialist teachers, and workplace trainers (only those who may work with vulnerable adults).

2. Determining Regulated Activity

All roles within the charity that involve contact with children or vulnerable individuals will be assessed to determine whether they meet the threshold for regulated activity. This assessment will consider:

- The nature of the role.
- The frequency and intensity of contact.
- Whether the individual is supervised and the adequacy of that supervision.

3. Supervision Requirements

Where an individual does not meet the threshold for regulated activity due to supervision, the following conditions must be met:

- Supervision is regular and day-to-day.
- The supervisor is themselves engaged in regulated activity.
- The level of supervision is reasonable in all circumstances to ensure the protection of children.
- The charity will maintain written records of supervision arrangements and review them regularly to ensure compliance.

4. Recruitment and Vetting

Individuals in regulated activity will undergo enhanced DBS checks with barred list checks.

Individuals not in regulated activity but working with children will undergo enhanced DBS checks without barred list checks, where appropriate.

All recruitment decisions are based on the role and its responsibilities and recorded on the Charity single central register.

Types of Risk and Harm

Harms and risks you must be alert to, whether online or in person, include:

- Sexual harassment, abuse, and exploitation
- Criminal exploitation
- A charity's culture, which may allow for poor behaviour and poor accountability
- People abusing a position of trust they hold within a charity
- Bullying or harassment
- Health and safety
- Commercial exploitation

- Financial abuse
- Cyber abuse
- Discrimination on any grounds in the Equality Act 2010
- People targeting your charity
- Data breaches, including those under GDPR
- Negligent treatment
- Domestic abuse
- Self-neglect
- Physical or emotional abuse
- Extremism and radicalisation
- Forced marriage
- Modern slavery
- Human trafficking
- Female genital mutilation

Categories of Young Person Abuse - Definitions to Support Your Work

It is accepted that any definition has its limitations in terms of accuracy and relevance. Bearing this in mind, the following definitions are offered to help our understanding.

Bullying

Bullying is repeated behaviour that hurts someone, either physically and/or emotionally. It includes hitting, pushing, spreading rumours, threatening, or undermining a person and it can happen anywhere. Cyberbullying takes place online.

There are several signs which may indicate that an individual is being bullied. These include:

- physical injuries, such as unexplained bruises
- eating or sleeping problems
- being distressed, nervous, withdrawn or losing confidence
- underperforming
- belongings being damaged or 'lost'
- bullying others.

Child Sexual Exploitation

The sexual exploitation of children and young people under-18 (CSE) is defined as that which:

'Involves exploitative situations, contexts, and relationships where young people (or a third person or persons) receive 'something' (e.g., food, accommodation, drugs, alcohol, cigarettes, affection, gifts, money) as a result of them performing, and/or another or others performing on them, sexual activities.

Child sexual exploitation can occur through the use of technology without the child's immediate recognition; for example, being persuaded to post sexual images on the Internet/mobile phones without immediate payment or gain. In all cases, those exploiting the child/young person have power over them by virtue of their age, gender, intellect, physical strength and/or economic or other resources. Violence, coercion, and intimidation are common, involvement in exploitative relationships being characterised in the main by the child or young person's limited availability of choice resulting from their social/economic and/or emotional vulnerability.' (Department for Education, 2012)

Child sexual exploitation is a form of abuse which involves children (male and female, of different ethnic origins and of different ages) receiving something in exchange for sexual activity. Schools are well placed to prevent, identify and respond to children at risk of sexual exploitation.

Who is at Risk?

Child sexual exploitation can happen to any young person from any background. Although the research suggests that females are more vulnerable to CSE, boys and young men are also victims of this type of abuse.

The characteristics common to all victims of CSE are not those of age, ethnicity, or gender, rather their powerlessness and vulnerability. Victims often do not recognise that they are being exploited because they will have been groomed by their abuser(s). As a result, victims do not make informed choices to enter, or remain involved in, sexually exploitative situations but do so through coercion, enticement, manipulation, or fear. Sexual exploitation can happen face to face, and it can happen online. It can also occur between young people.

In all its forms, CSE is child abuse and should be treated as a child safeguarding issue.

Emotional Abuse

Emotional abuse is the persistent emotional ill treatment of a young person causing severe and persistent adverse effects on the young person's emotional development. It may involve conveying to a young person that he or she is worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only as far as he or she meets the needs of another person. It may feature age or developmentally inappropriate expectations being imposed on a young person. It may involve causing a young person frequently to

feel frightened or in danger or the exploitation or corruption of a young person. Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of ill treatment of a young person, though it may occur alone.

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)

The World Health Organisation defines FGM as "all procedures (not operations) which involve partial or total removal of the external female genitalia or injury to the female genital organs whether for cultural or other non-therapeutic reasons" (1996).

It is illegal in the UK (United Kingdom) to subject a child to FGM or to take a child abroad to undergo FGM. A child for whom FGM is planned is at risk of significant harm through physical abuse and emotional abuse, which is also categorised by some as sexual abuse. Despite the harm it causes, many women from FGM practicing communities consider FGM normal to protect their cultural identity. Although FGM is practiced by secular communities, it is most often claimed to be done according to religious beliefs. However, neither the Bible nor the Koran supports the practice of FGM. In addition to giving religious reasons for subjecting girls to FGM, adults may say that they are acting in a child's best interests because it:

- Brings status and respect to the girl
- Preserves a girl's virginity / chastity
- Is a rite of passage
- Gives a girl social acceptance especially for marriage
- Upholds the family honour
- Helps girls and women to be clean and hygienic.

The age at which girls are subjected to FGM varies, from shortly after birth to any time up to adulthood. The average age is 10-12 years. Health implications can range from severe pain and emotional/psychological trauma to, in some cases, death.

Therefore, it is our duty as an educational provider to ensure that:

- Staff, associates, and volunteers have an awareness of FGM and understand the signs indicating that a girl has undergone FGM or is at risk of this practice;
- We follow local authority procedures when a girl is at risk of or is suspected of having undergone FGM. These procedures include a referral to the relevant local authority social care (following local procedures) and reporting to the police when known cases have occurred with girls under the age of 18.

Neglect

Neglect is the persistent failure to meet a young person's basic physical and/or psychological needs, The Dyslexia Association: 0115 924 6880

likely to result in the serious impairment of the young person's health or development. It may involve a parent or carer failing to provide adequate food, shelter, and clothing, failing to protect the young person from physical harm or danger or failure to ensure access to appropriate medical aid or treatment. It may also include neglect of, or unresponsiveness to, a young person's basic emotional needs.

Physical Abuse

Physical abuse may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning, or scalding, drowning, suffocating or otherwise causing physical harm to a young person. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent or carer feigns the symptoms of or deliberately causes ill health to a young person whom he or she is looking after. This is commonly described using terms such as induced/fabricated Illness by carer or Munchausen's Syndrome by Proxy or more recently "facilitated illness."

Financial Abuse

Financial abuse is a form of domestic abuse and is a way of having power over you. It involves someone else controlling your spending or access to cash, assets, and finances. This can leave you feeling isolated, lacking in confidence, and trapped.

Sometimes (but not always) financial abuse will be recognised by the police as coercive or controlling behaviour, which is also a criminal offence.

You do not have to be living with the person for the coercive or controlling behaviour offence to apply. Financial abuse can continue, or even start, after separation.

Financial abuse can take different forms and can happen to anyone of any age. Abusers can be partners, ex-partners, family members or others, such as carers.

Financial abuse is often part of wider economic abuse.

Economic abuse can include:

stopping you from going to work, college or university,

causing you to lose out on benefits by not letting you go to appointments at the Job Centre or apply for jobs, and

controlling your access to essential things, such as food, clothing, or transport.

Preventing Radicalisation

Preventing violent extremism by countering the ideology of extremism and by identifying those who are being drawn into radicalism has for some time formed part of our approach to safeguarding. The Counterterrorism and Security Act 2015 now imposes a duty on a wide range of bodies including all The Dyslexia Association: 0115 924 6880

education providers.

Our practice in this area is taken from the revised Prevent Duty Guidance. As an education provider, we are expected to:

- Assess the risk of children being drawn into terrorism and have clear procedures in place for protecting children at risk of radicalisation;
- Work in partnership with our local authorities by ensuring our safeguarding arrangements consider the policies and procedures of the relevant local authority Safeguarding Children's Board;
- Work in partnership with parents/carers by ensuring effective engagement with them when concerns are raised about their children;
- Ensure staff, associates and volunteers are trained to identify children at risk of being drawn into terrorism and challenge extreme ideas;
- Ensure that children are safe from terrorist and extremist material when accessing the internet at The Dyslexia Association;
- Understand when it is appropriate to make a referral to the Channel Programme, the panel that reviews and refers individuals to programmes that challenge extremist ideology.

Sexual Abuse

Sexual abuse involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in sexual activities, whether or not the young person is aware of what is happening. The activities may involve physical contact, including penetrative or non-penetrative acts. They may include non-contact activities such as involving a young person looking at, or in the production of, pornographic material or watching sexual activities or encouraging a young person to behave in sexually inappropriate ways.

Youth Produced Sexual Imagery

Youth produced sexual imagery is the definition The Dyslexia Association uses for the activities usually known as sexting. These activities are those covered by the 'the sending or posting of sexually suggestive images, including nude or seminude photographs via mobiles or via the internet.'

Imagery and images cover photographs and moving images sent by young people and images they, or another young person, may have created.

The law states that making, possessing and distributing any imagery of someone under 18 which is indecent is illegal and this includes imagery of yourself.

However, The Dyslexia Association does not want to criminalise young people and certain incidents can be treated as a safeguarding issue but only in very specific circumstances.

An immediate referral to the police and/or children's social care will be made if:

1. The incident involves an adult;

- 2. There is reason to believe that a young person has been coerced, blackmailed, or groomed or there are concerns about his or her capacity to give informed consent;
- 3. What you know about the imagery suggests the content depicts sexual acts which are unusual for the young person's developmental and/or cognitive age;
- 4. The imagery involves sexual acts and any young person under the age of 13;
- 5. There is reason to believe a learner is at immediate risk of harm owing to the sharing of the imagery e.g., presents as suicidal or is self-harming.

Where a referral is not made, the following risks will be considered when treating the incident as a safeguarding concern and, dependent on the outcome, a referral may still be made:

- 1. Why was the imagery shared? Was the young person coerced or put under pressure to produce the imagery?
- 2. Who has shared the imagery? Where has the imagery been shared? Was it shared/received with the knowledge of the pupil in the imagery?
- 3. Are there any adults involved in the sharing of the imagery?
- 4. What was the impact on the young person involved?
- 5. Do the pupils involved have additional vulnerabilities?
- 6. Does the young person understand consent?
- 7. Has the young person taken part in this kind of activity before?

The youth produced imagery should not be viewed by adults, unless:

- It is the only way to make a decision about whether to involve other agencies;
- It is necessary to report the image to the website, app, or suitable reporting agency to have it removed or to support the young person in making a report;
- It is unavoidable because the young person has presented the image, or it has been found on
 The Dyslexia Association network.

If the imagery is to be viewed these points will be followed:

Do

 \checkmark

Discuss and record decisions with the support of the Designated Safeguarding Officer.

 $\sqrt{}$

Ensure that the viewing takes place with the Designated Safeguarding Officer.

 $\sqrt{}$

Ensure viewing takes place on The Dyslexia Association premises.



Ensure viewing is done by a member of the same sex.



Record the viewing of the imagery in the safeguarding records.

Never



Print, copy or share the imagery.



View unnecessarily.



Put the child at further risk.



Allow any people other than the Designated Safeguarding Officer to view the imagery.

All decisions taken will be recorded and any viewing of imagery for the reasons above will be recorded as a safeguarding and e-safety incident and will follow the procedures for the reporting of such incidents.

Managing Incidents of Self Harm

Introduction

Self-harm is often an indicator of emotional distress and can be a sign of mental health problems. The purpose of this guidance is to provide additional support for staff, associates and volunteers working with children and young people who are either self-harming or at risk of self-harm or suicide. The Dyslexia Association aims to provide a non-judgmental, consistent, and caring response to all incidents. Our aim is to support staff, associates, and volunteers to feel confident and informed to appropriately support children and young people. Staff, associates, and volunteers should know who to consult with and referral pathways.

What is Self-harm?

Self-harm is where someone does something to deliberately hurt him or herself. This non- exhaustive list may include behaviours such as cutting, scratching, tying something around the body, inserting items into the body, hitting, or punching self, pulling out hair, over/under eating, burning, or scalding themselves, hitting head, self-strangulation, taking nonprescription drugs, overdosing or self-poisoning.

Signs and Symptoms

Signs and symptoms are sometimes absent or easy to miss. It is common for individuals who self-harm to offer stories which seem implausible, or which may explain one of, but not all, the physical signs. If a pupil says he or she is not self-harming or evades the question, you can 'keep the door open' by reminding him or her that you are always available to talk about anything, should he or she so wish. Try to stay connected to the pupil and look for other opportunities to ask, particularly if there are continuing signs that your suspicion is correct.

Guidance for Managing Incidents of Self-harm

- Do find out about potential triggers and what to look for where there is a history of self-harm.
- Do remain calm and find somewhere private to talk.
- Do not promise absolute confidentiality.
- Do provide or seek medical first aid if necessary.
- Do think about managing contagion and keeping the environment safe for other vulnerable adults, children, and young people.
- Do speak to the Designated Safeguarding Officer to assess risk and think about protective factors.
 This will include a discussion around the intent for each individual incident.

Recording of Incidents

Do record every incident, in a timely manner, and submit a safeguarding concern form.

Seeking Support

The Dyslexia Association is committed to ensuring the welfare of staff, associates, and volunteers to ensure that they can effectively manage the needs of vulnerable adults, children, and young people. Please do look after yourself and access support from your line manager or Designated Safeguarding Officers.

For more information and advice on self-harm and suicide prevention: www.harmless.org.uk www.youngminds.org.uk

Online Tuition

The Dyslexia Association has expanded tuition services to young people and vulnerable adults via remote technologies since 2020. This is often a convenient way to deliver services for young people and their families and for The Dyslexia Association. Due to this new way of working specific safeguards should be adhered to.

- Remote learning should only be used with learners who have trusted adult supervision at all
 times including those in registered care homes. The supervising adult should be always present
 and be able to hear the session taking place.
- Ideally young people should be in a communal space in their household when engaging with online tuition. This may not always be possible, do record parental consent if delivering tuition to a young person within their bedroom space.
- Only use the agreed meeting format and use the authorised TDA (The Dyslexia Association)
 account. Do Not Use a personal account.
- When delivering to a young person consider using your headphones to minimise any conversation overheard by members of your household.
- If any concerns arise, through either something which is said by the young person, a family member or other member of the household, or viewed, end the session. Report this immediately in the normal way via a verbal update to a DSO and/or submitting a safeguarding concern form. Be aware of what is in your background when delivering online tuition to ensure that your privacy is maintained e.g., view outside window onto local landmark or street sign etc.
- Ensure that no member of your household, or personal photos appear in the background. Use a bare wall if possible.
- Never take screenshots during online tuition.
- Always ensure the link includes a parent email address

Online Risk

Online content risk is when a "child engages with or is exposed to potentially harmful content. This can be violent, gory content, hateful or extremist content, as well as pornographic or sexualized content that may be illegal or harmful, including by being age inappropriate. Content online may be mass-produced or user-generated (including by the child), and it may be shared widely or not."

Online risk classification takes the following 4 Cs into consideration when assessing risk:

Content: engages with and/or is exposed to potentially harmful content

Contact: experiences and/or is targeted by potentially harmful contact

Conduct: witnesses, participates in and/or is a victim of potentially harmful conduct

Contract: is party to and/or exploited by a potentially harmful contract

Student Safeguarding Statement to Learners

The safety of all children and young people is paramount and all staff, associates and volunteers will listen to every concern and disclosure with sensitivity and respect and take what is said seriously.

The Dyslexia Association needs to make sure that it does "the right thing" for learners who disclose a concern or safeguarding issue. So, if what is said to staff, associates or volunteers makes them concerned then they will need to discuss your concern or disclosure so that decisions can be made about what to do next. You will be fully informed about any decisions that are made.

If appropriate, children's social care or the police may then start an investigation and they may want to talk to you, or other people involved. In these matters, your safety is paramount so you can be sure that they will only do what is right and proper.

If any member of staff believes you are in immediate danger, he or she will contact the relevant emergency service (e.g., police, ambulance) so help can be sought straight away.

Student Safeguarding Statement to Parents/Carers

The safety of all children and young people is paramount and all staff, associates and volunteers will listen to every concern and disclosure with sensitivity and respect and take what is said seriously.

The Dyslexia Association needs to make sure that it does 'the right thing' for learners who disclose a concern or safeguarding issue. So, if what is said to staff, associates or volunteers makes them concerned then they will need to discuss the learner's concern or disclosure so that decisions can be made about what to do next. The learner will be fully informed about any decisions that are made.

If appropriate, children's social care and the police may start an investigation and they may want to talk to you, or other people involved. In these matters, the safety of all children and young people is paramount so parents/carers can be sure that investigators will only do what is right and proper.

If any member of staff, associate, or volunteer thinks that a learner is in immediate danger, emergency help (e.g., police, ambulance) will be sought straight away.

Child Protection

Child Protection Procedures

All learners at some point may require additional support to keep them safe in the interest of their own welfare. However, all practitioners have a responsibility to refer a child to children's social care under section 11 of the Children Act 2004 if they believe or suspect that the child:

- Has suffered significant harm;
- Is likely to suffer significant harm;
- Has a disability, developmental and welfare needs which are likely only to be met through
 provision of family support services (with agreement of the child's parent) under the Children Act
 1989;

 Is a Child in Need whose development would be likely to be impaired without provision of services.

Anyone can make a referral directly to children's social care (using the details below), or the police, if he or she suspects a child is suffering significant harm and not in immediate danger (call 101) or in immediate danger or an emergency (999).

Alternatively, for further support and advice contact a designated safeguarding officer without delay to discuss your concerns. You may be asked to put your concerns in writing with further details. These details may be used to make a direct referral to social care so be sure to include as much information about the incident/disclosure/concern as you can.

Access to child protection services is local to the area in which the child or family reside. Contact details are below. Click on the link to access further information on how to report a concern about a child.

The Dyslexia Association is a charity based in the East Midlands hence why the links below are for local authorities in the East Midlands. For those working in other local authorities please use Safeguarding Partnership links: England to take you to the relevant partnership and their contact details to making referrals to childrens social care.

Area	Child Protection	Local Safeguarding Board
Derby City	Derby Children's Social Care	https://www.ddscp.org.uk/
Derbyshire	Starting Point	https://www.derbyshirescb.org.uk/home.aspx
Leicester City	Childrens Social Care Referrals	http://www.lcitylscb.org/
Leicestershire	First Response	http://lrsb.org.uk/
Lincolnshire	Children's Services Customer Service Centre	https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
Nottingham City	Multi-agency safeguarding hub MASH	https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/children-and-

		families/nottingham-city- safeguarding-children-board/
Nottinghamshire	MASH	http://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/nscb

Please Note:

This policy links directly to other policies of The Dyslexia Association. These are:

- Whistleblowing Policy (Please see Staff Handbook)
- Recruitment Policy
- IT Usage Policy (Please see Staff Handbook)
- Valuing Diversity and Dignity at Work Policy (Please see Staff Handbook)
- The Data Protection Policy (and GDPR) (please see Staff Handbook)

This policy will be reviewed annually by The Dyslexia Association's designated safeguarding officer, the lead trustee for safeguarding and ratified by the Trustees. It will be reviewed in line with any lessons learnt through safeguarding incidents, audits, and training.

The lead trustee will conduct an annual safeguarding audit which will include:

- A review of past concerns to identify if lessons have been learnt and they were handled appropriately
- Check any relevant records to ensure concerns are recorded adequately and appropriately
- Safeguarding policies and processes are in good order and being maintained to high standards
- Meet with staff and check their safeguarding knowledge
- Review the risk log in relation to safeguarding

This process informs the quality assurance of this policy, procedures, and processes.

Revision History:

28.07.25 - Updates to strengthen section on regulated activity and Keeping Children Safe in Education 2025 guidance (at time of writing this was for information only due to come into effect 01.09.25)

17.07.24 - Updates to Working together 2023 guidance, Keeping Children Safe in Education 2024 guidance, changes to the safeguarding definition in relation to these updates.

13.02.23 - Updates made to named DSO and lead trustee. Sections added on financial abuse, updates to online risks and types of risk. New flowchart added for allegations management, New

17.02.22 – Updates made to named DSO's, sections added on remote working, links to the GOV.UK guidance Safeguarding and protecting people for charities and trustees and allegations management to reflect changes within Keeping Children Safe in Education 2021

12.02.19 - Policy revised and rewritten for The Dyslexia Association